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Paul M. Blanch 
Energy Consultant 

15 October 2014 
 
Mr. Mark A. Satorius 
Executive Director for Operations  
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission  
Washington, DC 20555-0001  
 
Dear Mr. Satorius:  
 
SUBJECT:  
10 CFR 2.206 Petition Regarding Violations of Regulations 
 
REFERENCE:  
10 C.F.R. 50.59 Safety Evaluation and Supporting Analyses Prepared in Response to the 
Algonquin Incremental Market Natural Gas Project 
Indian Point Nuclear Generating Unit Nos. 2 & 3 
Docket Nos. 50-247 and 50-286 
License Nos. DPR-26 and DPR-64  
ML090640863, dated August 21, 2014 
 
I am submitting this 10 CFR 2.206 petition on behalf of myself based upon my review of the 
above referenced document. It is my belief that Entergy violated the requirements of 10 CFR 
50.9 in that the information provided to the Commission is incomplete and inaccurate, 
violated the quality assurance regulatory requirements specified in Appendix B to 10 CFR 
Part 50, and violated the safety evaluation requirements of 10 CFR 50.59. Given the obvious 
deficiencies contained within Entergy’s submittal, I believe there may also be a violation of 
10 CFR 50.5 “Deliberate Misconduct.”  
 
According to the Entergy submittal, the Risk Research Group, Inc prepared the enclosed 
Hazard Analysis. My review of this “Group” indicated it is a group of one with Mr. David 
Allen as President. Mr. Allen is a previous employee of New York Power Authority, the 
previous owner of Indian Point Unit #3.  
 
Mr. Allen’s qualifications for this type of vital nuclear and pipeline accident analysis could 
not be substantiated either by a search of the Internet and NRC ADAMS. My research 
questions the qualifications on Mr. Allen and his knowledge of risk assessment, Nuclear 
Regulations and natural gas transmission failures based upon the inaccurate and incomplete 
information contained within the licensee’s submittal. Some of this alleged inaccurate and 
incomplete information is discussed below. There is no discussion in the information provided 
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as to and structured approach such as Appendix C to §1910.119 – “Compliance Guidelines 
and Recommendations for Process Safety Management.” 
 
The report apparently generated by the Risk Research Group was withheld under 10 CFR 
2.390.  
 
I question the compliance with 10 CFR 50 Appendix B, Criteria VII for the suppliers of safety 
related services that states (emphasis added): 
 

VII. Control of Purchased Material, Equipment, and Services 
 
Measures shall be established to assure that purchased material, equipment, and services, whether purchased 
directly or through contractors and subcontractors, conform to the procurement documents. These measures 
shall include provisions, as appropriate, for source evaluation and selection, objective evidence of quality 
furnished by the contractor or subcontractor, inspection at the contractor or subcontractor source, and 
examination of products upon delivery. Documentary evidence that material and equipment conform to the 
procurement requirements shall be available at the nuclear powerplant or fuel reprocessing plant site prior to 
installation or use of such material and equipment. This documentary evidence shall be retained at the nuclear 
powerplant or fuel reprocessing plant site and shall be sufficient to identify the specific requirements, such as 
codes, standards, or specifications, met by the purchased material and equipment. The effectiveness of the 
control of quality by contractors and subcontractors shall be assessed by the applicant or designee at 
intervals consistent with the importance, complexity, and quantity of the product or services. 

 
It is the licensee’s responsibility that compliance with the above is mandated. It’s not apparent 
from Entergy’s submittal that these quality assurance regulatory requirements were satisfied 
with the Hazards Analysis prepared by the Risk Research Group. 
 
Entergy’s submittal seems to have also violated the regulatory requirements specified in 10 
CFR 50.59 that state: 
 

  (c)(1) A licensee may make changes in the facility as described in the final safety analysis report (as updated), 
make changes in the procedures as described in the final safety analysis report (as updated), and conduct tests 
or experiments not described in the final safety analysis report (as updated) without obtaining a license 
amendment pursuant to Sec. 50.90 only if: 
(i) A change to the technical specifications incorporated in the license is not required, and 
(ii) The change, test, or experiment does not meet any of the criteria in paragraph (c)(2) of this section. 
 
 
 (2) A licensee shall obtain a license amendment pursuant to Sec. 50.90 prior to implementing a proposed 
change, test, or experiment if the change, test, or experiment would: 
(i) Result in more than a minimal increase in the frequency of occurrence of an accident previously evaluated 
in the final safety analysis report (as updated); 
(ii) Result in more than a minimal increase in the likelihood of occurrence of a malfunction of a structure, 
system, or component (SSC) important to safety previously evaluated in the final safety analysis report (as 
updated); 
(iii) Result in more than a minimal increase in the consequences of an accident previously evaluated in the final 
safety analysis report (as updated); 
(iv) Result in more than a minimal increase in the consequences of a malfunction of an SSC important to safety 
previously evaluated in the final safety analysis report (as updated); 
(v) Create a possibility for an accident of a different type than any previously evaluated in the final safety 
analysis report (as updated); 
(vi) Create a possibility for a malfunction of an SSC important to safety with a different result than any 
previously evaluated in the final safety analysis report (as updated); 



 

 3 

(vii) Result in a design basis limit for a fission product barrier as described in the FSAR (as updated) being 
exceeded or altered; or 
(viii) Result in a departure from a method of evaluation described in the FSAR (as updated) used in 
establishing the design bases or in the safety analyses. 

	
  

 
As discussed below, inaccurate and incomplete information in Entergy’s submittal result in its 
50.59 safety evaluation being defective. 
 
The Indian Point Unit 3 FSAR revision submitted to the NRC in 2011 includes the following 
statement with respect to the existing gas lines. 

 
“A subsequent evaluation in 2008, (Reference 1), discussed the consequences of a pipeline rupture and 
the potential impact of that event on the sites Protected Area, Vital Areas, the Security Plan, safe 
shutdown, and other non-safety related structures, such as the waterfront warehouse. The hazards 
created by a breach and explosion of the pressurized above ground portions of the pipeline include: a. 
potential missiles, 
b. an over-pressurization event, 
c. a vapor cloud or flash fire, 
d. a hypothetical vapor cloud explosion, and 
e. a jet fire. 
A simultaneous rupture and ignition of both gas mains at the above ground locations inside the owner 
controlled area (OCA) is postulated to be the worst case scenario since this event will result in the most 
significant release of gas volume and have the potential to contribute to the largest potential fire. An 
attempt to uncover, breach and ignite a buried portion of the pipeline was not considered feasible. The 
report concluded that the event would not damage any safety related structure and there are no adverse 
effects on the gas pipeline event on vital areas, safe shutdown equipment, IPEC Security Plan, or 
essential personnel. Some damage to non-vital structures or non-essential personnel in the area of the 
pipeline may occur.” 

 
I interpret the words “not considered feasible” to mean not “credible” as used in 10 CFR 50 
with the probability of this event occurring to be zero or less than 10-7 per year. NRC 
Regulatory Guide 1.70 supports this assumption. 
 
The following is a list of statements in Entergy’s submittal that may contain incomplete and 
inaccurate information. 
 
• Entergy stated (emphasis in yellow added):  
 

 
This line abandonment is located within the controlled area and may impact plant safety but is 
not analyzed or discussed as required by 49 CFR §192.727   “Abandonment or deactivation of 
facilities.” Entergy’s submittal is therefore incomplete. 
 
• Entergy stated (emphasis in yellow added):  
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This appears to be an inaccurate statement. Entergy attempts to discuss and minimize the 
probability of the accident there is no discussion of the potential consequences of this event. 
 
• Entergy stated (emphasis in yellow added):  

 
 

 
 

The addition of concrete mats may generate missiles that may impact the safe operation of 
Indian Point. This is not analyzed. Entergy’s submittal is incomplete in this regard. 

 
• Entergy stated (emphasis in yellow added):  

 
 

 
 

and 
 

 
 
The present FSAR clearly states that and accident is “not considered feasible” and this most recent analysis 
concludes an accident is, in fact a probability. Entergy's submittal is inaccurate on this point. 
 

• Entergy stated:  
 

 
 
 
The IPEEE is not a part of the Current Licensing Basis (10 CFR 54.3). A more recent 
update to the FSAR seems to contradict this IPEEE. 
 

• Entergy stated (emphasis in yellow added):  
 
 

 
 
This statement is in direct conflict with the Spectra DEIS and application that clearly 
states these lines in the vicinity of Indian Point are Class 2 and 3. 
 



 

 5 

• Entergy stated (emphasis in yellow added):  
 
 

 
 

According to Spectra’s documents it does not consider the vicinity of Indian Point to be a 
High Consequence area, and only imposes the Class 2 and 3 requirements of 49 CFR 192. 

 
• Entergy stated (emphasis in yellow added):  
 

 
 

This statement is in direct conflict with the DEIS. According to Spectra these lines are only 
designed to Class 2 or 3 requirements as defined in 19 CFR. 

 
• Entergy	
  stated	
  (emphasis	
  in	
  yellow	
  added):	
  
	
  
	
  

	
  
	
  

	
  
This is an unsupported statement. This analysis (and previous analysis) were conducted with 
apparent disregard for compliance with 10 CFR 50 Appendix B by an individual with little 
knowledge of pipeline and nuclear safety requirements.  

	
  
Entergy stated (emphasis in yellow added): 

	
  

	
  
and	
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Entergy appears to ignore the FEMA handbook and provides no justification to reduce the 
probability of a line rupture from 5-4 to 1.98-6. The “enhanced pipeline” may actually increase 
the probability and consequences of a pipe rupture. 
 
 
 
Entergy stated (emphasis in yellow added): 
	
  

 	
  

	
  
	
  

This closure time is more than an order of magnitude less than other similar events 
investigated by the National Transportation Safety Board (NTSB). According to the NTSB, a 
typical time to terminate the gas flow ranges from 30 minutes to three hours. This proposed 
line is larger than other line accidents investigated by the NTSB. Identification of rupture of 
larger lines is more difficult and isolation times will be significantly longer. The NTSB has 
not identified any closure times of transmission lines occurring in less than 30 minutes. 

	
  
I have consulted with Richard B. Kuprewicz, President Accufacts, Inc. a world recognized 
pipeline expert, requesting his comments on the Entergy letter. His comments are below and 
restated with his permission. 
 

“From my detailed review, Entergy¹s letter to the NRC contains numerous errors that are either an attempt to 
deceive decision makers, or reflect an incredible lack of pipeline experience, in appreciating the real risks 
associated with a large 42-inch gas transmission pipeline rupture in a very sensitive area.  The proposed 42-
inch is not like the existing smaller diameter 24, 26, or 30-inch pipelines, and any attempt to dismiss such a 
large pipeline as similar are (SIC) extremely irresponsible.”  
 
“It is my advice that the NRC needs to review the real impact of a worst-case 42-inch gas pipeline rupture in 
the vicinity of the IPEC facility . . .” 
 
“The NRC may not recognize nor appreciate the true actual impact zone associated with a 42-inch gas pipeline 
rupture (multiple blasts and very high heat fluxes ­ disregard the 3 minute assumption in the Entergy letter).  
Just dismissing very real risk (no matter how minor the risks may seem, as posed in Entergy¹s letter) with 
such grave consequences such as loss of nuclear containment in southern New York, command a clear, 
thorough evaluation and review that is truly independent and factual.  I further find that the NRC’s comments 
to FERC based on the Entergy site hazard analysis for the 42-inch line to be highly inadequate at this time.  
The NRC and FERC should adequately demonstrate that any conclusions they reach, that there is no increase 
in risks to IPEC from the 42-inch pipeline, be adequately and publicly demonstrated.”   
 
“It does not help the situation that critical information utilized to reach important decisions pertaining to the 
42-inch pipeline may be misleading or false.  This can be very difficult for interveners and interested parties to 
this Docket filing who are under such arbitrary accelerated deadlines.”   
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In its submission to the NRC dated August 21, 2014 Entergy in included a copy of its 50.59 
Evaluation addressing the requirements of 10 CFR 50.59.  
 
Below I compare Entergy’s 50.59 evaluation and where I believe it contains incomplete and 
inaccurate information and possibly Deliberate Misconduct as defined in 10 CFR 50.5. 
 
Restated below are Entergy’s response from its submittal and my comments following each of 
the eight criteria of 10 CFR 50.59. 
	
  

	
  
Comment: This accident was analyzed in the FSAR and “not considered feasible” or credible. 
Even this deficient new analysis concludes a pipe rupture of a buried line has a failure 
probability of greater than 10E-6. This is inaccurate information. 
	
  	
  

	
  
	
  
A rupture of the new or existing buried gas transmission lines may impact systems previously 
evaluated in the UFSAR for example, secondary fires as a result of more than a million 
gallons of Gas Turbine Fuel Oil (GTFO) and safety related systems and other structures (SSC) 
located within close proximity to the gas transmission lines. 
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Both the switchyard and the GTFO tanks are located within 120 feet of the gas line and other 
components and structures are located within the blast and fire distance of the gas lines.   
This is inaccurate and incomplete information.  
	
  
	
  

	
  

	
  
	
  

The present UFSAR analysis states that this type of accident “is not feasible.” The new 
analysis now considers this accident has a probability of greater than 10E-6 and is therefore 
more than a “minimal increase.” This is an inaccurate statement and may be “willful 
misconduct.” 

	
  

	
  
	
  
The most recent analysis states it reviews and reports on the consequences of a pipeline 
accident, however the summary provided provides no information about the potential 
consequences of the pipeline accident. 
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Given the proximity of the GTFO tanks to the proposed new lines, a rupture and resulting fire 
has not been previously considered. This is a new type of accident that has not been 
previously evaluated in the USFAR. 
	
  

	
  
	
  
The GTFO tanks are located about 100 feet above many SSCs. The flow possibly a million 
gallons of flaming GTFO and its impact on SSCs has not been evaluated. 
	
  
	
  

	
  	
  
	
  
The answer to this question cannot be properly evaluated until all analysis are completed. 
	
  

	
  
	
  
The methodology described in the UFSAR and its conclusions are deficient. The previous 
methodology is not consistent with NRC criteria and apparently was not conducted using 
within the requirements of 10 CFR 50 Appendix B. 
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Requested actions:   
 
The NRC should take enforcement action for providing inaccurate and incomplete 
information to the NRC “10 CFR 50.9 Completeness and accuracy of information” violating 
the quality assurance requirements of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50, and violating the safety 
evaluation requirements of 10 CFR 50.59. 
 
The NRC should issued a Demand for Information to Entergy seeking this licensee’s 
explanation why the violations noted above do not also constitute violation of 10 CFR 50.5, 
“Deliberate misconduct.” 

 
The NRC should issue a Demand for Information to Entergy seeking the results from a new 
and realistic risk/hazard analysis consistent with the guidance provided within OSHA 
Appendix C to §1910.119 – “Compliance Guidelines and Recommendations for Process 
Safety Management1.” 
 
The NRC should issue a Demand for Information to Entergy attesting to the completeness and 
accuracy a previously report2 submitted to the NRC. This report formed the bases for the 
rejection of my 10 CFR 2.206 petition dated October 2010. 
 

 
 
 

                                           
1 https://www.osha.gov/pls/oshaweb/owadisp.show_document?p_id=9763&p_table=STANDARDS 
2 IP-PRT-08-00032, “Consequences of Fire and Explosion Following the Release of Natural Gas from Pipelines Adjacent to Indian 
Point”, by David Allen, Risk Research Group, August 2008. 


